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Historical Originstc \l1 "Historical Origins
Soil and Water Conservation Districts were an outgrowth of a difficult period in our Nation's history.  Their creation was hastened by a public awakening to the ravages of soil erosion, by the Depression, and the dust storms of the 1930's.  These storms brought ominous clouds of dust from the West to the Atlantic Seaboard and beyond. 

The destruction of millions of acres of land by soil erosion was a grave problem, not only to the farmers, but to the Nation itself.  On April 27, 1935, an Act of Congress (16 USC 590a) established the Soil Conservation Service, formerly the Soil Erosion Service.  It was set up as a permanent agency under the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) with the authority to work directly in an active program with farmers and ranchers in applying conservation practices to the land.  The name of the agency was again changed, in October 1994, to the Natural Resources Conservation Service.

In 1936, the USDA issued a pamphlet entitled "A Standard State Soil Conservation Districts Law.” This publication informed the states about the kind of state law that would be acceptable to the USDA as a basis for further assistance from the Soil Conservation Service.  It was prepared at the suggestion of representatives of a number of states.  In the forward, signed by the Secretary of Agriculture, is the statement:  "While it is anticipated that the Standard Act will be appropriate to the needs of most of the states in its present form, it is true, of course, that changes may have to be made in some of the provisions to adapt the legislation to the requirements of particular states.”
This Standard Act was studied by members of the University of Illinois Cooperative Extension Service, the Illinois Department of Agriculture, and interested farm organizations.  As a result, several changes were made in the Standard Act before it was passed into law for Illinois. The principal ones were to require land ownership as a qualification for voting to organize a district, to require a favorable majority of all qualified voters for organization, and to increase the necessary favorable vote for adoption of landuse regulations from a simple majority to three-fourths of all affected landowners.  On July 9, 1937, the Illinois General Assembly adopted the Soil and Water Conservation Districts Law. 

The first District formed under the Districts Law was the Shiloh-O'Fallon District (St. Clair County) in July 1938.  The last District to be formed was the Sangamon County SWCD on February 19, 1959. 

Several amendments have been added to the Districts Law since 1937.  Its title was changed to the Illinois Soil and Water Conservation Districts Act in 1977.  Perhaps the most significant change to the Districts Act occurred in 1977 when the General Assembly amended the Act giving the authority to the Illinois Department of Agriculture to develop a comprehensive state soil erosion and sediment control program.  It included guidelines to be used by districts in the establishment and administration of local erosion and sediment control programs and standards. 

What is a Soil and Water Conservation District?tc \l1 "What is a Soil and Water Conservation District?
A Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) is a governmental body created by state law for the express purpose of promoting the protection and conservation of the county=s and the state=s soil, water, and related natural resources.

The Soil and Water Conservation Districts Act (70 ILCS 405/3.01) defines districts as "...a public body corporate and politic..."  Although an SWCD is a governmental body, it is not a branch of federal, state, or county government.  Each SWCD is a local governmental entity and is very similar to a school district.  Classified as a “local unit of government,” SWCD’s are NOT and DO NOT have “Not for Profit” status.

Each SWCD is governed by a five-member board of directors.  SWCD directors are elected by owners and occupiers of land in the district.  The board meets regularly to formulate and administer a program of work that is tailored specifically to the conservation and protection of the district’s natural resources.

Areas of Concern to SWCDstc \l1 "Areas of Concern to SWCDs
SWCDs have a broad range of concerns that extend beyond the traditional concern of controlling soil erosion on cropland.  An increased awareness of the need to protect the environment has caused districts to branch out and to address concerns in many other areas.

The concerns of districts vary from one county to another.  Generally, the following are concerns addressed by most SWCDs:

1.
Reduction of soil erosion and sedimentation;

2.
Protection of water quality from agricultural and urban sources of pollution;

3.
Farmland conversion;

4.
Urban land use and development;

5.
Land use planning;

6.
Flood control;

7.
Enhancement of woodland, wildlife, and recreational resources;

8.
Mined land reclamation (surface mining, oil brine damage, underground mine subsidence); and

9.
Ground water resources (quantity and quality of groundwater).

Activities of SWCDstc \l1 "Activities of SWCDs
SWCDs are responsible for promoting conservation of the soil, water, and related natural resources.  To accomplish this, districts work cooperatively with other groups to increase awareness of resources, provide solutions to problems, educate the public, and show the public a better way of managing these resources.

To accomplish their mission, directors decide what programs and activities will have the greatest impact on the resources and the people in the county. 

Below is a list of activities that can be found in most SWCD's Annual Plan of Work.

 1.
Field demonstrations of tillage equipment, planters, etc.

 
 2.
County tours pointing out conservation systems that may include terraces, conservation tillage, water management practices, etc.

 3.
Meetings to promote conservation.

 4.
Rental of equipment such as no-till planters, tree planters, etc.

 5.
Displays at fairs, banks, shopping centers, schools, etc.

 6.
Contests for conservation farm family, teacher of the year, no-till yields, etc.

 7.
Presentations to vo-ag classes, civic groups, schools, etc.

 8.
Educational activities with schools.

 9.
Printing of newsletters, news releases, brochures, etc.

10.
Sales of conservation-related items such as fish and trees.

11.
Promoting Soil Stewardship Week.

12.
Providing input into the development of local farmland protection programs that focus on the problems associated with farmland conversion.

13.
Developing computer generated (GIS based) maps that identify highly erosive land, land cover, water bodies, land use changes, soil types, etc., in the county.

14.
Conducting workshops on conservation tillage, farm planning, environmental education, etc.

15.
Provide technical assistance to landowners in the development of conservation plans, and the design and construction of conservation practices.

16.
Preparation of Natural Resource Information Reports under Section 22.02a of the SWCD Act.

Number of SWCDs and Their Boundariestc \l1 "Number of SWCDs and Their Boundaries
There are 97 SWCDs in Illinois covering all counties in the state.  An amendment to the SWCD Act, effective January 1, 2000, included all territory into an SWCD, making SWCD boundaries the same as county boundaries, except that the following five SWCDs are comprised of two counties each:

Kane-DuPage County SWCD

Marshall-Putnam County SWCD

Pope-Hardin County SWCD

Pulaski-Alexander County SWCD

Will-South Cook County SWCD (Note: North Cook County is an SWCD in itself)
Lake-McHenry County SWCD
Soil and Water Conservation Districts Acttc \l1 "Soil and Water Conservation Districts Act
In 1937, the Illinois State Legislature authorized the creation of Soil and Water Conservation Districts.  This legislation also set up the organizational structure of districts and established their powers and responsibilities.

The legislation became known as Soil and Water Conservation Districts Act (or Districts Act, for short). Since 1937, the Districts Act has been amended several times to grant new responsibilities to districts and to improve the proper functioning of the districts.

In summary, the Districts Act spells out the roles, responsibilities and authorities pertaining to Soil and Water Conservation Districts.

Powers of SWCDs and Directorstc \l1 "Powers of SWCDs and Directors
Board members are elected public officials.  They are charged with the task of carrying out programs of soil and water conservation for the district, within the parameters of the authority given them by the District Act as well as all other statutory requirements that govern elected public officials.

The powers and responsibilities of districts and directors are summarized as follows:

 1.
Prepare an annual and long range plan of work;

 2.
Establish SWCD policies and procedures;

 3.
Carry out activities promoting the conservation of the soil, water, and related natural resources;

 4.
Work voluntarily with landowners in applying erosion control measures;

 5.
Administer a district soil erosion and sediment control program, setting standards for tolerable soil loss and establish a method of receiving and dealing with complaints arising from alleged violations of district standards;

 6.
Provide opinions to units of local government as to the suitability of the natural resources as zoning ordinances are developed or as zoning changes are requested;

 7.
Make available to the public the rental or sale of conservation related equipment or items;

 8.
Secure the cooperation of other agencies, groups, and individuals to further the goals and objectives of the SWCD;

 9.
Sponsor (or co-sponsor) and manage soil and water conservation projects undertaken with the assistance of the state or federal government;

10.
Require payment for service extended by the SWCD (but not the USDA NRCS) on lands other than state-owned lands (i.e., NRI reports, equipment rental, tree sales);

11.
Conduct research on soil and water conservation problems and their solutions;

12.
Develop and carry out strategies for the improvement of water quality;

13.
Carry out informational and educational programs in schools and in the adult community;

14.
Work with the Natural Resources Conservation Service and SWCD staff in establishing priorities on the type of assistance and the areas where the assistance should be provided.

(Note: 
This is only a partial summary of directors’ powers and responsibilities.)

“Common Sense” Responsibilities of Directorstc \l1 "ACommon Sense@ Responsibilities of Directors
District directors can make their jobs as directors as rewarding as they choose.  An effective director is one that is willing to accept responsibility, is a good organizer, and can provide the leadership that is necessary to accomplish goals.

The following responsibilities are just “common sense”, but they are nevertheless quite important.

1.
Know your responsibilities.

2.
Attend and participate in all SWCD meetings and functions.  This includes the monthly and special board meetings.

3.
Be on time.

4.
Don’t sit back and relax - participate, be active.

5.
At district board meetings, adhere to rules of common courtesy including those related to parliamentary procedure.  Stick to the agenda; tangents only get you home later.

6.
Have confidence in, and knowledge of, programs the district is promoting.

7.
Delegate some of your work, but not everything.

8.
Be willing to commit the time necessary to get the job done and do it well.

9.
Set an example for the community.

-have an up-to-date conservation plan on your land;

-be a district cooperator; and

-make certain your soil loss meets the district’s standards.

10.
When attending a meeting on behalf of the district board, represent the feelings of your board as a whole and not just your own.

11.
Be sensitive to the needs and desires of others, even though you may not personally agree with them.
12.
Be familiar with the land and water resources of the entire district and the practices required to conserve and utilize these resources wisely.

13.
Hire capable employees who are qualified to do the job and assume your responsibilities as an employer.

14.
Support and participate in the programs of the Association of Illinois Soil and Water Conservation Districts, the National Association of Conservation Districts and Illinois Department of Agriculture, Bureau of Land and Water Resources.

15.
Do not be afraid to disagree or offer constructive criticism.

16.
State your opinions and argue your case to the best of your ability.  However, once the board has reached a decision, support the board's decision regardless of your opinion.

Planning and Organizing the District’s Worktc \l1 "Planning and Organizing the District=s Work
Long Range Plan (LRP)tc \l2 "Long Range Plan (LRP)
The SWCD board, SWCD and NRCS employees, cooperating agencies, and other interested groups and individuals should meet together every few years to update the district’s Long Range Plan.  This plan has three basic purposes.

1.
It serves as a roadmap for the SWCD, and helps provide direction in identifying and solving the problems that are most important to the district board.

2.
It provides goals for accomplishment.

3.
It identifies for the public what the SWCD wishes to achieve - what the SWCD’s purpose is.

Annual Plan Of Work (APW)tc \l2 "Annual Plan Of Work (APW)
The Annual Plan of Work (APW) is developed each year by the SWCD.  The district may enlist the help and input of the Natural Resources Conservation Service and other interested agencies, groups, and individuals in the development of the APW. 

The APW identifies exactly what the SWCD wants to accomplish in the coming year and should be reviewed regularly throughout the year to determine progress.  The following items are identified in a good annual plan of work.

1.
Specific and quantifiable activities and projects the district wants to work on the next 12 months.

2.
Who is responsible for each work item.

3.
Time frames (schedule) for each activity and project.

4.
Progress notes (Is the item on schedule?  Has it been completed? If not, why?)

District Policiestc \l2 "District Policies
A business or organization operates best if it operates consistently.  Its position on things cannot change frequently and still be able to maintain a high level of credibility.  This also applies to districts.  Districts need to establish policies and stick by the policies to maintain an efficient and credible operation.  Special circumstances may require exceptions.  However, districts typically adopt at least three types of policies.

1.
Positional Policies - policies that summarize how the district stands on certain issues such as soil erosion, farmland conversion, etc.

2.
Procedural Policies - policies that explain the course of action the district will take.  Examples include the SWCD's investment policy, financial reports, etc.

3.
Personnel Policies - policies that explain the relationship between the District and its employees and specifically list what the employees should be able to expect from the SWCD as well as what the SWCD expects from the employees.

Sources of SWCD Fundingtc \l1 "Sources of SWCD Funding
SWCDs receive funding from many different sources.  The two principle sources of funding for most districts are the State of Illinois, through the Illinois Department of Agriculture, and their local county boards.

Other sources of income may be provided by:

1.
Municipalities;

2.
Contributions;

3.
Sale of conservation related items (such as trees, fish, marking flags, etc.);

4.
Grants from special interest groups, government, foundations;

5.
Rental of equipment (such as zero till planters, drills, etc.);

6.
Real estate;

7.
Interest and dividends;

8.
Borrowing money; and

9.
Preparation of Natural Resource Information Reports under Section 22.02a of the SWCD Act.

SWCD Employeestc \l1 "SWCD Employees
Typically, SWCDs have a full or part-time Administrative Coordinator who performs administrative and clerical work.  The workload in most SWCDs has made it necessary for directors to hire additional employees in order for all work to be completed.

Typically, SWCDs have a full-time Resource Conservationist who is assigned to do technical, administrative and educational work.

Some SWCDs have hired Executive Directors who serve as an office manager and who may do work similar to the Resource Conservationist.
Other types of SWCD employees include technicians who do survey and conservation practice design work, conservation education coordinators, and resource consultants who often are assigned on a contractual basis to perform special tasks.

The SWCD employees are the SWCD Boards’ employees. They may assist or receive training, guidance, and technical supervision from the Natural Resources Conservation Service.  Because the Board is their employer, the directors have ultimate responsibility for oversight and supervision of these employees.

A Little Bit About Being a Directortc \l1 "A Little Bit About Being a Director
As locally elected officials, directors have an obligation to do the best job possible of providing conservation assistance to their constituents - owners and occupiers of land (residents) within the SWCD.  Conservation of the soil and water resources is an important responsibility and demands time, energy, initiative, and occasionally, assertiveness.

Time Commitmenttc \l2 "Time Commitment
Directors are expected to attend each monthly board meeting and the District’s annual meeting.  The length of each board meeting depends on the volume of business to be conducted and the ability of the chairman to run an efficient meeting.

Directors should also make every effort to attend three land use council meetings (groups of 4-9 districts), a one day workshop conducted each March by the Bureau of Land and Water Resources (BLWR) and the three day Annual Meeting and Land & Water Resources Conference in late July or early August, hosted by the BLWR and the Association of Illinois Soil and Water Conservation Districts.

Several special meetings may arise throughout the year which directors should attend.  It cannot be denied - being a director takes time!

Qualifications of Directors/Voterstc \l2 "Qualifications of Directors/Voters
The only legal qualifications required of potential directors (or those voting in SWCD elections) are as follows:

a.
Must be an owner or occupier of land lying within the district boundaries; and

b.
Must be of legal voting age.

Additionally, potential or current directors should be interested in carrying out the business of the district, getting involved, and committing the time to do a good job.

It goes without saying a director must practice what he preaches.  If the director is a farmer, developer, etc., he should practice on his own land that which he advocates on behalf of the SWCD.

Travel Expenses and Compensation of Directorstc \l2 "Travel Expenses and Compensation of Directors
Directors may receive up to $20/day for services extended to the district.  They may also be reimbursed for travel expenses necessarily incurred in the discharge of their duties.

Compensation for services and reimbursement for travel expenses depends upon the SWCD’s financial ability.

Length of Termtc \l2 "Length of Term
Directors are elected to serve a two-year term.  Terms of office begin on the first Monday of March of the year in which the directors are elected.  There are no term limits.

Holding Officetc \l2 "Holding Office
As soon as possible after the first Monday in March each year, the Directors must meet and elect from among themselves a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman, a Secretary and a Treasurer. One person may serve as both Secretary and Treasurer. These persons will then hold their elected office until the first Monday in March of the following year.

Associate Directorstc \l1 "Associate Directors
Some SWCDs appoint Associate Directors to assist the elected board members and SWCD staff with heavy workloads or to expand the scope of the district program.  Associate Directors may possess special knowledge, skills, or abilities that would allow them to perform certain tasks.

Board members can decide the amount of responsibility they want to give to their Associate Directors, but, because the Associate Directors are appointed by the board and are not elected by district landowners and occupiers, they cannot make motions or vote on items of official SWCD business.

Being an Associate Director provides excellent training for men and women who are potential directors.  Generally, it requires several months for a new director to become acquainted with all the district’s services, program, and activities.  Being an Associate Director provides individuals an opportunity to test their talents and determine for themselves the kind of contribution they can make to the district program.

Associate Directors may be paid mileage and out-of-pocket expenses as authorized by the SWCD board.

Association of Illinois Soil and Water Conservation Districts - AISWCDtc \l1 "Association of Illinois Soil and Water Conservation Districts - AISWCD
Nature and Functiontc \l2 "Nature and Function
The Association of Illinois Soil and Water Conservation Districts (AISWCD) was organized for, and operates on behalf of, the States 97 Soil and Water Conservation Districts.  The AISWCD functions include:

1. Providing advice and administrative assistance to districts on matters relating to soil erosion, water quality, and conservation education;
2.
Promoting cooperation and information exchange between districts, governmental agencies, organizations, and the public; and

3.
Acting as one voice on legislative issues of interest to districts.

Governing Bodytc \l2 "Governing Body
The AISWCD is governed by an executive committee elected by its membership and a 16 member board of directors.  Directors are elected locally, one from each of the AISWCD’s 16 Land Use Councils.

The AISWCD meets quarterly.  Its committees convene prior to the quarterly board meetings to review the issues and/or implement the policies of the AISWCD.

Councilstc \l2 "Councils
The AISWCD has divided the State’s 97 SWCDs into 16 councils.  Each council has 4-9 SWCDs.  Meeting from 1-4 times a year, the councils provide a forum for SWCD directors, SWCD employees, and other interested individuals to discuss the problems and activities of their member districts.  Council meetings also provide an opportunity to discuss business items and resolutions to be brought before the AISWCD board.

From among their ranks, Directors in each council elect a slate of officers.  One such person is the council delegate.  The council delegate serves as a member of the AISWCD board of directors.  The council delegate is a very important individual in the AISWCD as he/she ultimately helps to shape the future of Illinois' conservation effort.
Illinois Soil and Water Conservation District Employees Association - ISWCDEAtc \l1 "Illinois Soil and Water Conservation District Employees Association - ISWCDEA
Nature and Functiontc \l2 "Nature and Function
The Illinois Soil and Water Conservation District Employees Association (ISWCDEA) was organized for, and operates on behalf of, the employees of the State’s 97 Soil and Water Conservation Districts.  The ISWCDEA’s functions include:

1.
Providing advice and guidance to the AISWCD, the Natural Resources Conservation Service, and the Bureau of Land and Water Resources in matters relating to employee development and training, soil erosion, water quality, and conservation education programs;

2.
Promoting cooperation and information exchange between districts, governmental agencies, organizations, and the public; and

3.
Acting as one voice on issues of interest to district employees.

Governing Bodytc \l2 "Governing Body
The ISWCDEA is governed by a ten member board elected by its membership.  Two representatives are elected from each of the five Bureau of Land and Water Resources Administrative Regions.

The ISWCDEA meets quarterly prior to the AISWCD quarterly board meetings to review the issues and make recommendations to the AISWCD.

Assistance Available to SWCDstc \l1 "Assistance Available to SWCDs
SWCDs have, at their request, the assistance of several governmental agencies, private organizations, and individuals who can help the SWCDs accomplish their missions.

It is important to understand the relationship between the district and its cooperating agencies and private organizations.  The district receives assistance of various types from these agencies and organizations.  In return, the SWCD often provides certain services to these entities - all in a spirit of mutual, voluntary cooperation.

Memorandum of Understanding - When an agency or organization can be of continuing assistance to the SWCD and vice versa, the two groups will often put the terms of their mutual assistance into writing.  This agreement is called a Memorandum of Understanding. It might be compared, perhaps, to a contract. It spells out what each entity will do for the other and what they will do together.

An example of such an agreement which all SWCDs have signed is the Memorandum of Understanding between each Soil and Water Conservation District and the USDA.  Districts have also signed a Supplemental Memorandum of Understanding with the USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service.

Governmental Agencies Providing Assistance to Your SWCDtc \l1 "Governmental Agencies Providing Assistance to Your SWCD
Many governmental agencies, private groups, and individuals provide assistance to SWCDs. The following government agencies, listed, are those with which the SWCDs will have frequent contact and interaction:

USDA Natural Resources Conservation Servicetc \l2 "USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service
The Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) provides trained personnel, equipment, and office space to help districts with the technical aspects of planning and applying conservation measures.  In addition, the NRCS also provides other types of assistance, such as:

1.
Providing counties with modern soil surveys;

2.
Providing information on the potentials and limitations of the different types of soils;
3.
Offering advice in selecting plant varieties, seeding methods, and rates;

4.
Solving problems that arise in managing pastures, woodlands, or wildlife habitat; and

5.
Helping municipal and county officials and planning bodies cope with problems of water supply, improper land use, flooding, sedimentation, land reclamation, and water management.

USDA Farm Services Agencytc \l2 "USDA Farm Services Agency
The Farm Services Agency (FSA) administers a cost-share program to help landusers finance needs conservation measures.  FSA will only provide this assistance for those measures meeting the NRCS design criteria.

University of Illinois Extensiontc \l2 "University of Illinois Extension
The University of Illinois Extension (UIE), through the County Extension Advisor, provides educational and informational assistance to the SWCD on matters relating to the conservation of the soil, water, and associated natural resources.

Illinois Department of Natural Resourcestc \l2 "Illinois Department of Natural Resources
The Illinois Department of Natural Resources provides financial and technical assistance to SWCDs working with landowners who are involved in the Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP), wildlife, and forestry programs.

Illinois Department of Agriculture, Bureau of Land and Water Resourcestc \l2 "Illinois Department of Agriculture, Bureau of Land and Water Resources
The Bureau of Land and Water Resources is legislatively responsible for providing administrative, financial, and other technical assistance for the operation of districts.  The Bureau has two offices which provide direct assistance to districts.

Through these two offices, the Bureau constantly seeks new or improved methods of providing assistance to SWCDs in fulfilling its legislatively assigned responsibilities of controlling erosion, improving water quality, and protecting our land, water, and related resources.

Office of Natural Resource Managementtc \l3 "Office of Soil Conservation
1.
Provides administrative and financial assistance to districts in the conduct of their day-to-day business.

2.
Administers the State’s Erosion and Sediment Control Program that sets standards for excessive soil erosion.

3.
Administers a cost-share program for conservation measures, as needed, for the resolution of a legitimate complaint arising from the Erosion and Sediment Control Program.

4.
Provides funding for the employment of Resource Conservationists by districts.

5.
Assists SWCDs and agencies with the administration of on-going or potential water resource projects.

6.
Coordinates State government’s financing of county soil surveys.

7. Administers a state cost-share program for sharing the cost of installing soil conservation practices.
8.
Provides information and training to district directors, associate directors, and district employees through the annual Land and Water Resources Conference, Spring Workshops, Winter Training, and other such training programs.

9.
Provides assistance to SWCDs in conducting and utilizing the Transect Survey.

10.
Provides technical assistance and funding to SWCDs for the Streambank Stabilization and Restoration Program.

11.
Provides assistance and funding to SWCDs and eligible applicants for Sustainable Agriculture Program Grants.

12.
Assists SWCDs in the administration of the SWCD Act, the Water Use Act of 1983, and other statutory requirements that may affect SWCDs.

13.
Provides technical and informational materials, and guidance to directors and staff related to program development and operational procedures.  

Office of Farmland Protection and Mined Land Reclamationtc \l3 "Office of Farmland Protection and Mined Land Reclamation
1.
Works with SWCDs and local government to increase awareness of farmland conversion problems.

2.
Assists in development of local farmland protection programs.

3.
Reviews State capital development projects to determine agricultural impact.

4.
Reviews mined land reclamation permit applications and on-going and completed reclamation projects.

5. Administers a formula for determining the productive capabilities of reclaimed farmland which has been mined.
Directors are Much More than Volunteerstc \l1 "Directors are Much More than Volunteers
Being a Soil and Water Conservation District Director is an important public service position.  Directors of soil and water conservation districts are not so very different from county board, city council, or school board members.  While some directors may see themselves as volunteers, all directors are locally elected governmental officials and subject to the same standards of conduct and ethics as any other elected official.

The biggest difference between SWCD directors and other governmental officials rests on the fact that SWCDs are non-taxing entities and directors are not generally paid for their services.

This doesn't mean that director jobs aren't important.  No other unit of government has the broad responsibility or authority to protect and conserve the state's land, water, and related natural resources.

The Conservation Partnershiptc \l1 "The Conservation Partnership
To help SWCDs accomplish their legislated mandates, a host of state and federal agencies and organizations are ready to offer whatever assistance they may be authorized to provide.  As a director of an Illinois Soil and Water Conservation District, you can call on any member of the conservation partnership at any time for assistance, advice, guidance or information which will help you do your job in the most effective and efficient manner possible.

Commonly Used Acronymstc \l1 "Commonly Used Acronyms
AC
=
Administrative Coordinator (district)

AG
=
Attorney General


http://illinoisattorneygeneral.gov/

AISWCD
=  
Association of Illinois Soil and Water Conservation Districts


www.aiswcd.org/


APW
=
Annual Plan of Work (also known as the APO - Annual Plan of Operations)
ARS
=
Agricultural Research Service, part of USDA


www.ars.usda.gov/

ASTC
=
Assistant State Conservationist, US Department of Agriculture, Natural Resource Conservation Service (assigned Areas 1-5, Leadership positions)
BF
=
Beginning Farmer
BLM
=
Bureau of Land Management (federal agency)


www.blm.gov/

BLWR
=
Bureau of Land and Water Resources, Illinois Department of Agriculture


www.agr.state.il.us/Environment/LandWater

CAP
=
Conservation Activity Plan (required for certain NRCS programs)
CCA
=
Certified Crop Advisor

CCC
=
Commodity Credit Corporation, part of FSA
CCPI
=
Cooperative Conservation Partnership Initiative
CE
=
Civil Engineer, UDSA, NRCS

CIG
=
Conservation Innovation Grant
CMA
=
Cooperative Management Agreement (same as MOU)

CMS
=
Central Management Services (state)
COE
=
US Army Corps of Engineers (also USACE and Corps)



www.usace.army.mil
COOP
=
Continuity Of Operations Plan
CPA
=
Conservation Priority Area

CPESC
=
Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control

CRP
=
Conservation Reserve Program

CREP
=
Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program
CSP
=
Conservation Stewardship Program
CTA
=
Conservation Technical Assistance

CTIC
=
Conservation Technology Information Center

CWA
=
Cooperative Working Agreement
DARTS
=
Data Access, Recording & Tracking System (IDOA + SWCD)



www.agr.state.il.us/darts/

DC
=
District Conservationist, USDA, NRCS

DOH
=          District Operational Handbook (There are two DOH books. DOH - I contains information concerning policies, procedures and legal requirements for Directors.  DOH - II contains information and guidance materials)
DWM
=          Drainage Water Management
EA
=
Environmental Assessment
EAB
=
Emerald Ash Borer

ESC
=
Erosion + Sediment Control practice (ex. Esc-1, Esc 1a and Esc 1b claims forms)
EE
=
Environmental Evaluation

EIS
=
Environmental Impact Statement

EMP
=
Environmental Management Plan

EQIP
=
Environmental Quality Incentive Program

EWP
=
Emergency Watershed Protection 

EWRP
=
Emergency Wetland Reserve Program

FEMA
=
Federal Emergency Management Agency



www.fema.gov/
FIP
=
Forestry Incentive Program
FMP
=
Forest Management Plan

FPE
=
Floodplain Easement
FPPA
=
Farmland Protection Policy Act 
FRPP
=
Farm + Ranchland Protection Program
FSA
=
Farm Service Agency, USDA



www.fsa.usda.gov/
GIS
=
Geographic Information System
GLRI
=
Great Lakes Restoration Initiative
HB
=
House Bill (state level)
HR
=
House Resolution (federal level)
HUS
=
Historically Underserved
IARC&D
=
Illinois Association of Resource Conservation & Development Areas



www.illinoisrcd.org/
IDNR
=
Illinois Department of Natural Resources



www.dnr.state.il.us/
IDOA
=
Illinois Department of Agriculture



www.agr.state.il.us
IDOT
=
Illinois Department of Transportation



www.dot.state.il.us/
IEMA
=
Illinois Emergency Management Agency



www.state.il.us/iema/

IEPA
=
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency



www.epa.state.il.us/
IFA
=
Illinois Forestry Association




www.ilforestry.org/

IFDA
=
Illinois Forestry Development Act (IDNR)
ILCS
            Illinois Compiled Statutes, (published listing of State of Illinois laws) 

            www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs.asp
ISWCDEA =
Illinois Soil and Water Conservation District Employees Association



www.iswcdea.org/

ITS
=
ITS OCIO, USDA, NRCS (Computer Specialist)
LESA
=
Land Evaluation and Site Assessment System

LRP
=
Long Range Plan

LTA
=
Long Term Agreement

LUC
=
Land Use Councils
MLRA
=
Major Land Resource Area (soil survey organizational group)
MOA
=
Memorandum of Agreement

MOU
=
Memorandum of Understanding
MRBI
=
Mississippi River Basin Initiative
NACD
=
National Association of Conservation Districts



www.nacdnet.org/

NASCA
=
National Association of State Conservation Agencies



www.nascanet.org

NASDA
=
National Association of State Departments of Agriculture



www.nasda.org/

NRCS
=
Natural Resources Conservation Service, USDA



www.nrcs.usda.gov/

NMP
=
Nutrient Management Plan
NRI
=
Natural Resource Information Report (Section 22.02a)
NRI
=
National Resource Inventory 

OMB
=
Office of Management and Budget (federal)



www.whitehouse.gov/omb/

PL-566
=
The US Small Watershed Act administered by NRCS

PFC
=
Partners for Conservation Fund Program (state cost-share program)
PMC
=
Plant Materials Center




http://plant-materials.nrcs.usda.gov/

RAMP
=
Rural Abandoned Mineland (reclamation) Program (federal)
RC
=
Resource Conservationist (position / job title used by districts and NRCS)
RC&D
=
Resource Conservation and Development, USDA



www.il.nrcs.usda.gov/contact/directory/rcd.html

RD
=
Rural Development (Formerly FmHA), USDA



www.rurdev.usda.gov

RMS
=
Resource Management System
RR
=
Regional Representative (Illinois Department of Agriculture, Bureau of Land and Water Resources)

RUSLE
=
Revised Universal Soil Loss Equation

SA
=
Sustainable Agriculture

SB
=
Senate Bill (state level)
SC
=
Soil Conservationist, (position / job title, USDA, NRCS)
SCA
=
Soil Conservation Aid, (position / job title, USDA, NRCS)
SCT
=
Soil Conservation Technician, (position / job title, USDA, NRCS)
SIP
=
Stewardship Incentives Program
SP
=
Special Projects Program (IDOA)
SR
=
Senate Resolution (federal level)
SS
=
Soil Scientist, (position / job title, USDA, NRCS)
SSRP
=
Streambank Stabilization + Restoration Program 
STC  
= 
State Conservationist, (NRCS State Leader)
SWCD
=
Soil and Water Conservation District

SWCS
=
Soil and Water Conservation Society; (Professional society for soil and water conservationists and related professions)



www.swcs.org
T
=
Tolerable soil loss level
TMDL
=
Total Maximum Daily Load, (a standard set for rivers and streams that is an indicator of the amount of pollutants the stream or river can carry without adversely affecting its “protected” use.)
TSP
=
Technical Service Provider
USC
=
United States Code, a published listing of United States laws 

USDA
=
US Department of Agriculture



www.usda.gov

USDI
=
US Department of the Interior



www.doi.gov
USEPA
=
US Environmental Protection Agency



www.epa.gov
USFS
=
US Forest Service



www.fs.fed.us
USF&WS
=
US Fish and Wildlife Service, US Department of Interior



www.fws.gov/
USGS
=
US Geological Service



www.usgs.gov/
USLE
=
Universal Soil Loss Equation

WAE
=
While Actually Employed (NRCS temporary position)
WASCOB
=
Water and Sediment Control Basins

WDP
=
Well Decommissioning Program
WHIP
=
Wildlife Habitat Incentives Program
WREP
=
Wetland Reserve Enhancement Program
WRP
=
Wetland Reserve Program

The preceding list contains the most commonly used acronyms that soil and water conservation district directors will encounter.  This list is by no means complete and probably never will be.  As new technology is developed and new programs are created, new "letters" are added to the partnership's jargon on a regular basis.
Reference List for Sources of Informationtc \l1 "Reference List for Sources of Information
"Where to learn more:"

· Soil and Water Conservation Districts Act

· Open Meetings Act

· Freedom of Information Act

· Water Use Act

· Sustainable Agriculture Act

· Director Training Programs

· Your SWCD's APW, LRP, Annual Report, Etc.

· NRCS Technical Guide

· Illinois Urban Manual

· Illinois Procedures and Standards for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control "Green Book"

· Your Bureau of Land and Water Resources Regional Representative

· Your Council Representative or your Association of Illinois Soil and Water Conservation Districts staff
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